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One of Danville's prominent families lived at the comer of Route 111A and Sandown Road for over 100 years. Nathaniel Webster, the great grandson of Benjamin Webster, the first recorded white male child born in the town of Kingston (1701), and who is believed to be the Benjamin Webster who subsequently became one of the 27 men to build and convey the Old Meeting House to the town of Hawke (Danville), married Sarah Lovering in 1821. Sarah, known throughout her life as Sally, was the stepdaughter of Captain Elisha Hook of Poplin (Fremont), and with the marriage came the home at the comer of Sandown Road. It isn't known for sure when the house was constructed, but it is believed that it started life in the mid 1700's as a half cape, which became the kitchen ell when a full cape was added to the south side of the structure. Town historians believed the cape was built in 1790. This was probably the configuration of the home that Nathaniel and Sally moved into in 1821. 

Tax records in the following years show the property owned jointly by Captain Hook and Nathaniel Webster. When Captain Hook died in 1831 his interest passed to his widow, Nathaniel's mother-​in-law, and it stayed that way until her death in 1846, when tax records then show the property owned jointly by Nathaniel and the heirs of Miriam Hook. 

Nathaniel was a third cousin once removed to Daniel Webster, a New Hampshire native, and one of New England's most prominent politicians. Nathaniel became Danville's (then Hawke) first postmaster in 1825, and operated the town's first post office out of his home. He farmed his land, which tax records show to be some 70 acres, and operated a stage coach stop for coaches that originated in Concord, came down Sandown Road stopping at the Webster’s, then continued on down Back Road to Exeter, and then on to Portsmouth. The building that housed the tiny general store where they sold provisions to the coach passengers as the horses were rested, still stands today on the east side of Route 111A at the foot of Sandown Road. 

Nathaniel purchased a family pew in the Old Meeting House in 1825, and became a town selectman in the 1830's. He and Sally had six children, two boys and four girls. The older boy died at age 19, but the others all lived to adulthood. It is believed that it was during the 1830's when most of their children were born, that Nathaniel raised the roof on the cape making it the two-story colonial that exists today. 

It has not been substantiated, but rumors have persisted for years that the Websters provided a layover for slaves from the South fleeing to Canada for freedom prior to the Civil War. If true, their home would have been a stop on the famous "underground railroad." 

Albert, the surviving son, traveled about the Midwest in the mid 1800's as an agent for purchasing and selling land for commercial developers. Excerpts from his letters and diaries have appeared periodically in the Hawke Historical Society publication, Reminiscences. Mary, the oldest daughter, born in 1827, never married.  She continued the farming operation and the stage coach stop after the death of her father in 1871. She was the last with the Webster surname to live in the house, as it passed to her nephew, Walter Brown of Ashland, NH, when she died in 1918. 

From that point on the Webster heirs used the old farm only as a retreat in the summer months, and it remained vacant the remainder of the year. In 1930 Emma Sanborn and her youngest son, Melton, were left homeless when their house up the hill on Sandown Road burned to the ground. At Walter Brown's behest they moved into the vacant house on the comer until other arrangements could be made. Other arrangements were never made, and the property was purchased from Walter Brown by the Sanborns. 

Emma stayed on in the Webster farm until her death in 1951. Her older son Harold, moved in with her after his retirement from the W.T. Grant Company, and he lived there alone after her death until he died in 1974. The property then passed to his brother, Melton Sanborn, who sold it to John and Jane Vlasuk. The Vlasuks restored the old farm house and subsequently sold the property to Paul Kapela in 1986, who continued the restoration on the house and the bam. It was sold again in 1991 to Bill Gard, who also has continued restoring the old Webster farm, one of Danville's landmarks. 

